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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

To
The Members of SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(IND AS) STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of SAIL REFRACTORY
COMPANY LIMITED (CIN: U14200TZ2011G0O1017357) (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows and notes to the financial
statements. including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (*Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2024, its profit and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for, our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Except for the matter described in the Basis of opinion paragraph and the below mentioned
points, there are no other key audit matters to communicate.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

1. Raw materials procurement and valuation The process of the raw material procurement is
through tenders from the open market. Competitive
pricing is done through auction process and contract
awarded. There are control checks in receipt, and
accounting of the materials in stores and issue thereof.
The valuation is based on weighted average basis.

2.Provision and contingent liabilities relating to Our audit procedures included, but were not limited

ongoing litigations to the following:

The Company is subject to a number of legal, Obtained understanding of the process of

regulatory and tax cases for which final outcome identification and measurement of provisions and

cannot be easily predicted and which could contingent liabilities relating to ongoing litigations

potentially result in significant liabilities. implemented by the Management, through various

Management’s disclosures with regards to discussions held with Company’s legal and finance

provisions and contingent liabilities. The personnel. Inspected the summary of litigation

assessment of whether a liability is recognised as a | matters and discussed key developments during the

provision or disclosed as a contingent liability is year with the Company’s Legal and Finance personnel.

subjective and requires significant management

judgement relating to ongoing litigation are Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in the

presented in notes to accounts. Company’s standalone financial statements in
accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting

The assessment of whether a liability is recognised | Standards.

as a provision or disclosed as a contingent liability

is subjective and requires

significant management judgement

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s
Report including Annexure to Board’s Report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qﬂr opmlor?on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
{ “"éxprgs:s\any f'orm of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

[f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As pe (pf an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

2,

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph
3 and 4 of the order to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

//:%have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the

.f \"

2/
il ‘““.|
.':\";.ﬂll w e
A\ \&/
W%\ @

be c@‘r\our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
SALEM |2



b)

¢)

d)

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

As per the Notification NO.GSR 463(E) Dated 5 June 2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Provisions of sub-section
(2) of Section 164 of the companies Act 2013, are not applicable to the company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us;

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note Nos. 46 & 47 in the financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or

: E}fﬁf‘-f./cﬁ entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

\‘f\ Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,

e ] | security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;



(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a)
and (b) contain any material misstatement.

Dividend has been declared and paid during the year by the Company —
Details as per Note No.50.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the company with
effect from  April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g)
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024.

“Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with.”

As per our report of even date

For KR Sarangapani and Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN 050018S
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*®

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED
of even date)

On the basis of the information and explanation given to us during the course of our
audit, we report that:

i. (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of its property, plant and
equipment.

(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the
Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(i)(a)(B) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on
such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
company does not hold any such immovable property (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed
in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the
company
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Sl
No.

Nature |

Line of
Iltem
in

property

Total Area
(Acres)

Gross

value
(Rs. in
crore)

Net Value
value

(Rs. in

crore)

Title Deed
Held in
Name of

Whether
title deed
holder is
a
promoter,
director
or their

Period held
indicate
range,
where
appropri
ate

Reason for
not
being held in |
name of the
Company

1 Free
Hold
Land

1 Free
Hold
Land

1 Lease
Hold
Land

1 Lease
Hold
Land

1 Lease
Hold
Land

147.994
(Salem Tamil
Nadu)

21.81
(Kushal
Nagar,
Karnataka)

G.0O.No.853-
Red Hills
Magnesite
and Dunite
Mines

1538 67 acres

G.0.No.51-
JaghirMagnesi
te Mines

250 44 acres

G.O.No.679-
A S.
JaghirMagnesi
te Mines

93.450 acres

The
total
Lease
Hold
Land
shown
in Asset
Register
as one
Rupee
value

5.11

The
total
Lease
Hold
Land
shown
in Asset
Register
as one
Rupee
value

Burn
Standard
Company
Ltd.
(BSCL)

BSCL

BSCL

BSCL

BSCL

No

No

Ne

No

No

Since
16.12.2011

Since
16.12.2011

Since
16.12 2011

Since
16.12.2011

Since
16.12.2011

1)SRCL has
applied for
waiver of
stamp duty to
the tune of
Rs.5.07 crore
to the
Inspector
General of
Registration,
Chennai
based on the
fact that the
said transfer
was between
two
Departments/
Administrative
Ministries of
Govt. of India
(Dept. of
Heavy
Industries and
Ministry of
Steel)

2)SRCL
requested the
Sub-Registrar,
Kushal Nagar,
Madikeri,
Karnataka
vide letter
SRCL / Mines
[2021-22 1
041 dated
01.10.2021 for
change of
ownership in
the name of
SRCL

The Sub-
Registrar
Office, Kushal
Nagar replied
vide letter
dated
26.10.2021
stating that
SRCL have to
contact /
approach the
TahsildarTaluk
office,
Kushalnagara




Since then we
are following
up with the
TahsildarTaluk
Office,
Kushalnagara
for transfer of
lands in the
name of
SRCL.

3) Subsequent
to obtaining
the EC, the
Lease will be
granted in the
name of
SRCL.

4) The Govt.
of Tamil Nadu
has taken over
the 246.203
acres of Lease
Hold Land.
The balance
land available
is only 4.237
acres. The
Govt. of Tamil
Nadu has not
yet corrected
the Lease
Hold Land
area.

5) The Govt.
of Tamil Nadu
has taken over
the 37.012
acres of Lease
Hold Land.
The balance
land available
is only 56.438
acres. The
Govt. of Tamil
Nadu has not
yet corrected
the Lease
Hold Land
area




(d) The company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment during the
year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the order are
not applicable to the company.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned
any working capital limits, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets.

iii. During the year the Company has not made any investment, provided loans,
advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) to () of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iv. The provision of section 185 of the Act are not applicable to the company.
According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not given
any loan or guarantee or made any investment or provided any security covered
under section 186 of the act.

v. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

vi. Maintenance of cost records has been specified for the business in which company
is engaged by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013.We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained
by the company pursuant to the Rules made by the central Government for the
maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, Prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they

__are accurate or complete.




vil. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us. no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees™ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax, cess and other material
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction. previously
unrecorded in the books of accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

x. (a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer including debt instruments. Term loans obtained has been utilized
for the purpose for which same has been obtained.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares / fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the
year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiii. Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
*_vofithe business.
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The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit were considered by
the statutory auditor.

xv. According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in Section
192 of Companies Act, 2013.

xvi. (a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR)
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) As per the information and explanations received, the group does not have
any CIC as part of the group.

xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses in current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year respectively.

«viii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note No.51 to the Financial
Statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company.

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. The company does not have unspent CSR amount other than ongoing projects
during the year and hence the clause (xx) (a) is not applicable.

= —The “CSR Unspent” bank account for the year 2021-22 and 2022-23 is under
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The company has unspent CSR Amount to the tune of Rs.0.32 Crores for the
F.Y.2023-24 under sub-section(35) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to
the ongoing projects and the same has been transferred to special account i.e “SRCL
Unspent CSR Account”™ in compliance with the provision of Sub Section (6) of
section 135 of the said Act..

xxi. The company has not made investments in subsidiary company. Therefore. the
company does not require to prepare consolidated financial statement. Therefore,
the provisions of Clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the

Company.

As per our report of even date

For KR Sarangapani and Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 050018S

Place: Salem Sudha Vasudevan ONPATS
Date: 11.05.2024 Partner ; /q;‘;/ = :’\«,c\
UDIN: 24025062BKHJA13246 M.No. 025062 'J| e \



ANNEXURE - BTO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting SAIL
REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED (“The Company") as of 31 March 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on

that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of'its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

AUTITOR’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and. both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
\Bgfiﬁwrcial statements, whether due to fraud or error
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects. an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

As per our report of even date

For KR Sarangapani and Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0500188

Place: Salem Sudha Vasudevan
Date: 11.05.2024 Partner
UDIN: 24025062BKHJAI3246 M.No. 200942




Annexure-C to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Directions under section 143(5) of Companies Act 2013

QUESTIONS

AUDITOR'S COMMENTS

Whether the company has system in place to process all the
accounting transactions through IT system?, If yes, the
implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT
systems on the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any , may be stated.

Yes the company has a system in place to
process all the accounting transactions
through IT system.
Based on our audit on test basis, wherever
the accounting transactions based on
workings outside the IT system, no
instances of lack of integrity of accounts
and no financial implications has been
noted/reported

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases
of Waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the company due to the company's inability to replay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated. Whether
such cases are properly accounted for? (In case, lender is a
Government company, then this direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of the lender company)

Not applicable to the company

Whether funds(Grants/Subsidy, etc.,) received/receivable for
specific schemes from central/State Govt or its agencies were
properly accounted for/ utilized as per its terms and
conditions? List the cases of deviation

Not applicable to the company

RANGAPANI & Co.,
d Accountants,
.050018S

F.R.N
PARTNER.

SUDHA VASUDEVAN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
ATEMBERSHIP No: 025062

~or K.R.SA

Chartere



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

~ai REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem P
Jatance Shect as at 31st March, 2024 g@ 0 ,;‘?@
tA smannts in T Creres, unless otherwise stated) RESENIAZIEL
| Particulars | Note i As it 31st As at 31st |
; | No. March, 2024 March, 2023 |
|
ASSETS '
Non-current assets |
(a) Property. Plant and Equipment 4 [8.48 19.25 |
(b) Right of use assets 4a 0.02 0.04 |
(¢) Intangible assets 5 0.02 0.02
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Trade reccivables 6 . =
(ii) Loans T 0.07 0.07
(iil) Other financial assets 8 0.72 0.72
(e) Current tax assets (net) 9 0.08 0.08
(f) Other non-current assets 10 6.24 1.99
Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 75.87 48.63
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 46.65 27.49
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 13 (i) 55.65 50.65
(iii) Bank balances other than (i1) above 13 (i) 75.70 102.04
(iv) Other financial assets 14 0.41 0.51
(¢) Other current assets 15 1.27 2.03
TOTAL ASSETS 281.18 253.52
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 0.10 0.10
(b) Other equity 17 182.79 168.72
Liabhilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease liability 0.01 0.02
(ii) Trade payables 18 6.07 331
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 39.47 39.34
(h) Provisions 20 13.65 13.02
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21 0.15 0.20
Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 7.65 -
(ii) Lease liability 0.02 0.02
(iii) Trade pavables 23 - 2.83
(iv) Other financial liabilities 24 26.39 19.59
(b) Other current liabilities 25 0.78 0.84
(c) Provisions 26 3.74 2.40
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 27 0.36 3.13
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 281.18 253.52
Matenial Accounting Policies 1-3

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

/ QD L\ M ] [" '
,- Qo™ A MJ\F-"/ \ ook an
LN ay e wiee gt
(S. SENTHIL KUMARAN) (DILIP KUMAR MISHRA) (ANIRBAN DASGUPTA) (PRAVEEN NIGAM)
GM(F&A) CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

(DIN : 06832261)

(DIN : 08540737)

As per our report of even date T :
for KR SARANGAPANI & CO. %
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS &« o \
o
M\-ﬂ VaA~~d e = SALE W *
— )
(SUDHA VASUDEVAN) o
Place : Salem Partner. M.No, 025062 AI.\-‘Q\\?.
Date : 11.05.2024 Firm No. 1500188 .:-/

Ubin © 240260b2 Bk A6 204 b



SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(All amounts in T Crores, unless otherwise stated)

ﬂ..
fesey

HEAENDENEEND
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 28 164.15 167.13
Other Income 29 10.87 10.01
Stock transfer to other units - -
Total Income 175.02 177.14
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 30 90.42 88.81
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress 31 (1.85) 5.43
Employee benefits expense 32 17.80 17.91
Finance costs 33 0.05 -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 0.92 1.02
Other expenses 34 40.18 39.62
Total expenses 147.52 152.79
Profit/Loss (-) before tax 27.50 24.35
Tax expense
Current tax 725 7.10
Deferred tax 0.08 (0.50)
Total tax expense 7.33 6.60
Profit/Loss (-) for the year 20.17 17.75
Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.02) (0.66)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified - 0.17
Other Comprehensive Income/Loss (-) for the year (0.02) (0.49)
Total Comprehensive Income/Loss (-) for the year 20.15 17.26
Material Accounting Policies 1-3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

/S

% A%

e kil poems N
(DILIP KUMAR MISHRA)

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

1g‘~(w[)\([“\\\-YWW

(ANIRBAN DASGUPTA)
CHAIRMAN
(DIN : 06832261)

(S. SENTHIL KUMARAN)
GM(F&A)

As per our report of even date
for KR SARANGAPANI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

OQN Al g Mw-ﬁ-
(SUDHA VASUDEVAN)

Pariner, M.No. (025062
Firm No. 0500188

Place : Salem
Date : 11.05.2024

UbTn: 240260b2BWRSAT 2240
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(PRAVEEN NIGAM)

DIRECTOR
{DIN : 08540737)




SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31st March 2024

(At amounts in & Crores, unless otherwise stuied)

B,
BA
L
By

Particulars 3lst March 2024 31st March 2023
Cash Mow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 27.50 24.35
Adjustments for:
Depreeiation and amortisation 0.92 1.02
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 0.17 (1.03)
(Gain)/ Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) (0.89) -
Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory 0.60 1.76
Interest income (10.07) (7.80)
Interest on income tax refund - (0.18)
Provisions for advances (0.22) 1.31
Operating cash flows before' working capital changes 18.01 19.43
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (19.16) 6.33
(Increase)/Decrease in inventorics (27.24) (10.37)
(Increase)/Decrease in other short term financial assets 0.10 (0.09)
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (3.49) 2.93
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (0.07) (1.02)
Increase/(Decrease) in long term provisions 0.63 1.15
Increase/( Decrease) in short term provisions 1.34 1.20
Increase/( Decrease) in other financial liabilities 6.87 5.2
Increase/( Decrease) in other liabilities 4.82 3.17
Cash flow generated from operations (18.19) 28.14
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (6.70) (7.43)
Net cash flow from operating activities A (24.89) 20.71
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase or construction of Property.plant and equipment (0.44) (0.01)
Bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) (net) 26.34 (35.59)
Interest received 10.07 6.28
Net cash generated from investing activities B 35.97 (29.32)
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividend paid (6.08) (12.52)
Net cash used by financing activities C (6.08) (12.52)
Net cash increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B-+C) 5.00 (21.13)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 50.65 71.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 55.65 50.65
Movement in cash balance 5.00 (21.13)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks
On current accounts 0.58 16.04
On deposits with original maturity upto 3 months 55.07 34.61
55.65 50.65

o\ Y .~ o
Q ‘;\ap \ZS Y“:'(' =

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

[LM[&_ A\ g Gﬁ}jlm’i;

(S. SENTHIL KUMARAN) (DILIP KUMAR MISHRA) (ANIRBAN DASGUPTA) (PRAVEEN NIGANMN)
GM{F&A) CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
(DIN : 06832261) (DIN : 0854073T)

As per our report of even date
for KR SARANGAPANI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANIS

Place : Salem
Date : 11.05.2024

LN&U Vol n

(SUDHA VASUDEVAN)
Partner, M.No. 023062
Firm No. 0500188

Voin . D4 025062 RIAHTSAT 2240




SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All amounts in T Crores, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital

ooy,
SR

Balance as at

Changes in

Balance as at 31st

FRrbets Ist April, 2023 | SqUity share | b, 2024
capital
Equity shares with voting rights 0.10 - 0.10
B Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus
Capital General Retained
: Total

Reserve Reserve Earnings
Balance as at Ist April, 2023 43.70 17.58 107.44 168.72
Profit/(loss) for the year - - 20.17 20.17
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year - - (0.02) (0.02)
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - - 20.15 20.15
Equity Dividend - - 0.08 0.08
Interim Dividend - - 6.00 6.00
Transfer - 2.02 (2.02) -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 43.70 19.60 119.49 182.79
Material Accounting Policies 1-3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

(S. SENTHIL KUMARAN)

GM(F&A)

As per our report of even date
for KR SARANGAPANI & CO.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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(DILIP KUMAR MISHRA)
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

ke

(ANIRBAN DASGUPTA)
CHAIRMAN
(DIN : 06832261)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTIS

(ﬂ:\ip\_c VP

(SUDHA VASUDEVAN)

Place : Salem
Date : 11.05.2024

Partner, M.No. 025062
Firm No. 0500188

Ubiv: 24025062014 n 503 R24b
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(PRAVEEN NIGAM)
DIRECTOR
(DIN : 08540737)
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SAIL REUFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

N

otec t Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March. 2024

Corporate and General Information

SAIL Refractory Company Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on 23 August 2011.
On 16 December 2011, the Company acquired Salem refractory works of Burn Standard
Company 1imited (‘BSCL") as part of the financial restructuring of BSCL approved by the
cabinet committee of Economic Affairs (Government of India). The Company is engaged
in production of calcined magnesite. mag-carb bricks and dunite. The Company is having
production facility at Salem, Tamil Nadu. The registered office of the Company is situated
at Salem steel plant, Salem Tamil Nadu, India.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
their meeting held on 11" May 2024.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section
133 of Companies Act, 2013, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods
presented.

2.2 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
e certain financial assets and liabilities which are classified as fair value through
profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income;
e assets held for sale, at the lower of the carrying amounts and fair value less cost to
sell;
e defined benefit plans and plan assets.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is the
Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in ¥ have been
rounded off to the nearest two decimals of Crore unless otherwise stated.

2.4 Use of Estimates and Management Judgement

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with Company’s Accounting Policies,
management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements. the amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period and notes to
the Financial Statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to
such estimates is recognised in the period in which the same is determined.

2.5 Current versus Non-current classification
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

e Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

o [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified
as non-current assets and liabilities.

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements is given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
the periods presented in the financial statements.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
3.1.1 Recognition and Measurement

Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or
services. or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The initial cost at cash price
equivalence of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable costs
of bringing the assets to its working condition and location and present value of any
obligatory decommissioning costs for its intended use. Plant and Machinery also include
assets held under finance lease.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in
construction, direct labour, allocation of overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs
including trial run expenses (net of revenue)

Spares having useful life of more than one year and having value of Rs. 10 lakhs or more
in each case, are capitalised under the respective heads as and when available for use.

g I&{{Igss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
“Statement.of Profit and Loss.
{ Q’.I\a w !

3 o

| 1=z
\ \r_f?— |~\ C\‘,‘m / :':

"
. . ‘_ i =
e




SA

3.1.2

Rl

32

3.2.1

IL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Subsequent Cost

Subsequent expenditure is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits derived from the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of replaced item (s) is derecognised. .

Any repair of Rs. 50 lakhs or more of property. plant and equipment are recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits of the costs
incurred will flow to the Company. The carrying amount of the replaced item (s) is
derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on tangible assets and investment property is provided on straight line
method, considering residual value of 5% of the cost of the asset, over the useful lives of
the assets. as specified in Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of Factory
Buildings, Plant and Machinery, Water Supply & Sewerage and Railway Lines & Sidings
and components thereof, where useful life is determined by technical experts. The useful
life assumed by the technical experts is as under:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in years)
Factory Buildings 35 to 40
Plant and Machinery 10 to 40
Water Supply & Sewerage 251040
Railway Lines & Sidings 351040

For these classes of assets, based on technical evaluation carried out by external technical
experts, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period
over which Company expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets
are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act 2013.

The estimated useful lives and residual values of depreciable/ amortisable assets are
reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Where the historical cost of a depreciable asset undergoes a change, the depreciation on
the revised unamortised depreciable amount is provided over the residual useful life of the
asset. Depreciation on addition/ deletion during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with
reference to the month of addition/ deletion. Assets costing up to Rs. 5000/- are fully
depreciated in the year in which they are put to use.

Depreciation on capital spares is provided over the useful life of the spare or remaining
useful life of the mother asset, as reassessed, whichever is lower.

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Mining Rights

<o PL T iz "
Mi@ﬁ}g%igljgs.,\al'e treated as Intangible Assets and all related costs thereof are amortised
jon/the l%asp‘ié\iaf‘xﬁannual production to the total estimated mineable reserves. In case the
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

3.2.2

w
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3.4

mining rights are not renewed. the balance related cost will be charged to revenue in the
year of decision of non- renewal.

Acquisition Cost i.e. cost associated with acquisition of licenses, and rights to explore
including related professional fees, payment towards statutory forestry clearances, as and
when incurred, are treated as addition to the Mining Rights.

Other Intangible Assets
Software which is not an integral part of related hardware, is treated as intangible asset
and amortised over a period of five years or its licence period. whichever is less.

Research and development

Development expenditure is capitalised only if it can be measured reliably and the related
asset and process are identifiable and controlled by the Company. Research and other
development expenditure is recognised as revenue expenditure as and when incurred.

Subsequent Cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amount of its assets on each Balance Sheet date for the
purpose of ascertaining impairment indicators if any, by considering assets of entire one
Plant as Cash Generating Unit (CGU). If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable
amount is estimated, as higher of the Net Selling Price and the Value in Use. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Stripping Cost

The stripping cost incurred during the production phase of a surface mine is recognised as
an asset if such cost provides a benefit in terms of improved access to ore in future periods
and following criteria are met:

e [t is probable that the future economic benefits (improved access to an ore body)
associated with the stripping activity will flow to the entity,

e The entity can identify the component of an ore body for which access has been
improved, and

e The costs relating to the improved access to that component can be measured reliably.

The expenditure, which cannot be specifically identified to have been incurred to access
ore is charged to revenue, based on stripping ratio as per 5 year mining plan for mines,
exdept/collieries which is based on project report.

o\
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

3.5

X7

3.8

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying
asset, which takes substantial period of time. are capitalised as a part of the cost of that
asset, during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use.

The Company considers a period of twelve months or more as a substantial period of time.

Transaction costs in respect of long-term borrowings are amortised over the tenor of
respective loans using effective interest method. Other borrowing costs are recognised in
the Statement of Profit & Loss in the period in which these are incurred.

Inventories

Raw materials, Stores & Spares and Finished/Semi-finished products (including process
scrap) are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value of the items of the respective
Plants/Units. In case of identified obsolete/ surplus/ non-moving items, necessary
provision is made and charged to revenue. The net realisable value of semi-finished special
products, which have realisable value at finished stage only, is estimated for the purpose
of comparison with cost.

Residue products and other scrap are valued at estimated net realisable value.

The basis of determining cost is:

Raw materials - Periodical weighted average cost
Minor raw materials - Moving weighted average cost
Stores & Spares - Moving weighted average cost
Materials in-transit - at cost

Finished/Semi-finished products - material cost plus appropriate share of labour, related
overheads and duties.

Government Grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Where the Grant relates to an asset value, it is
recognised as deferred income, and amortised over the expected useful life of the asset.
Other grants are recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss concurrent to the expenses
to which such grants relate/ are intended to cover.

Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded
gross at fair amounts and released to the income statement over the expected useful life
and pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Foreign Currency Transactions
&q\}gnﬂurrepcy transactions are translated into the functional currency ot the Company
ange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains

--—and L&ss% t}‘esultmg from the settlement and re-measurement of monetary items
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I'l
AL\ 3_, ¢




SAIl REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

3.9

denominated in foreign currency are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss at
period-end exchange rates.

The Company opted for accounting the exchange differences arising on reporting of long
term foreign currency monetary items in line with Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules 2009 relating to Accounting Standard-11 notified by Government of
India on 31st March, 2009 (as amended on 29" December 2011), which will continue in
accordance with Ind-AS 101 for all pre-existing long term foreign currency monetary
items as at 31° March 2016. Accordingly, exchange differences relating to leng term
monetary items. arising during the year, in so far as they relate to the acquisition of fixed
assets, are adjusted in the carrying amount of such assets.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost
(translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items
measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair
value was determined.

Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. Contributions towards Provident Funds are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the period when the contributions to the Funds are due.

Defined Benefit Plan

Defined benefit plans are the amount of the benefit that an employee will receive on
completion of services by reference to length of service, last drawn salary or direct costs
related to such benefits. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company.

The liability recognised for Defined Benefit Plans is the present value of the Defined
Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together
with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs.
Management estimates the present value of the DBO annually through valuations by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are
included in Statement of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income of the year.

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss.

Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus, ex-
gratia, annual leave and sick leave which are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Company.

L:i\%ﬁtiﬁtieg_recogniscd in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
?’» 1SC
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

3.10

3:11

3.12

3.13

[/

Expenditure incwred on Voluntary Retirement Scheme is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss immediately.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Sale of goods

Sales are net of Goods and Services Tax (GST), rebates and price concessions. Sales are
recognised when it satisfy performance obligation by transferring promised goods or
services (i.e. assets) to the customers and the customers obtain control of those goods or
services. Where the contract prices are not finalised with government agencies, sales are
accounted for on provisional basis.

Marine export sales are recognised on:

1)  the issue of bill of lading, or

ii) negotiation of export bills upon expiry of laycan period, in cases where realisation
of material value without shipment is provided in the letters of credit of respective
contracts, whichever is earlier.

Export incentives under various schemes are recognised as income on certainty of
realisation.

The iron ore fines not readily useable/saleable are included in inventory and revenue is
recognised on disposal.

Interest and dividend income
Interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
Dividends are recognised at the time the right to receive is established.

Adjustment pertaining to Earlier Years
Income/Expenditure relating to prior period, which do not exceed 0.5% of Turnover in
each case, is treated as income/expenditure of current year.

Claims for Liquidated Damages and Price Escalation

Claims for liquidated damages are accounted for as and when these are considered
recoverable by the Company. on final settlement. These are adjusted to the capital cost
or recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, as the case may be on final settlement of
Liquidated damages.

Suppliers’ and Contractors’ claims for price escalation are accounted for to the extent
such claims are accepted by the Company.

Leases

Company as a Lessee

Finance leases
«Eftfahige-leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and

-

“benefit§ i -ﬁjdental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the lower of the fair
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value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term
and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments under such leases are apportioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate
of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. Lease management fees.
legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalised.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end
of lease term, capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating leases

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to
statement of profit and loss on straight-line basis except where scheduled increase in rent
compensate the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

Company as a Lessor

Finance leases

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified and accounted for as finance
lease. Lease rental receipts are apportioned between the finance income and capital
repayment based on the implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Operating leases

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets are
included in the balance sheet based on their nature. Rental income is recognized on
straight-line basis over the lease term except where scheduled increase in rent
compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Any gain or loss on disposal of
investment property is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the property and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Company classifies a non-current asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and its sale is highly
probable.

Non-current assets including discontinued operations, classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the carrying amounts and fair value less costs to sell and
presented separately in the financial statements. Once classified as held for sale, the
H\gjﬁjﬁ:@é\qot subject to depreciation or amortisation.
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Any profit or loss arising from the sale or re-measurement of discontinued operations is
presented as part of a single line item in statement of profit and loss.

Mine Closure

Mine Closure Provision includes the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, the
removal of residual materials and the remediation of disturbed areas for mines. This
provision is based on all regulatory requirements and related estimated cost based on best
available information. Mine closure costs are provided for in the accounting period when
the obligation arises based on the net present value of the estimated future costs of
restoration to be incurred during the life of the operation and post closure.

The 1nitial close-down and restoration provision is capitalised within “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. Subsequent movements in the close-down and restoration provisions for on-
going operations, including those resulting from new disturbance related to expansions
or other activities qualifying for capitalisation, updated cost estimates, changes to the
estimated lives of operations, changes to the timing of closure activities and revisions to
discount rates are also capitalised within “Property, Plant and Equipment”. These costs
are depreciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate. Any changes in closure
provisions relating to closed operations are charged /credited to the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The amortisation or “unwinding” of the discount applied in establishing the
provisions is charged as Finance Cost.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A Provision is recognised when the Company has present obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are discounted
to their present value, where the time value of money is material.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as a separate asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not possible that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot be made. The
Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Other Notes to Financial
Statements.

In cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present
obligation is considered improbable or remote. no Provision is recognised or disclosure
is made.

Contingent Assets

quéiiﬁgggt_‘assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise
J $$ibility of an inflow of economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognised
sclosed. where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

|
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3.21

income Taxes

Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax
and current tax not recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or directly in
equity.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
in accordance with the Indian Income-tax Act. Current income tax relating to items
recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in OCI or in equity.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised in full for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, unused tax
credits (MAT Credit entitlement) or deductible temporary difference will be utilised
against future taxable income. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in
OCI or in equity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with
other short-term highly liquid investments (original maturity less than 3 months) that are
readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Equity and Reserves

Share Capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Securities
premium includes any premium received on issue of Share Capital.

Components of other equity include the following:

e Re-measurement of defined benefit liability comprises the actuarial gain or loss
from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and return on plan assets.

¢ Bond Redemption Reserve.

e Other transactions recorded directly in Other Comprehensive Income.

e Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits

Financial Instruments

Recognition, initial measurement and de-recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised and are measured initially at fair
value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those financial assets which are classified

at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL) at inception.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

/A aﬁnar{mal asset expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are
(‘, /tlansf\lc{‘ed A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged.

1 '\cr :' ccg,\rgq:qlleﬁ_lm expires.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified into the
following categories upon initial recognition:

+ amortised cost

+ financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

« financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at
least at each reporting date.

Amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost using effective interest rates if both of the
following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this
category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are either do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost classification or that are equity instruments held for trading or that
meet certain conditions and are designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All
derivative financial instruments also fall into this category. Assets in this category are
measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of
financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions
or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Financial assets at FYOCI

FVOCIT financial assets are either debt instruments that are managed under hold to collect
and sell business model or are non-trading equity instruments that are irrevocable
designated to this category at inception.

FVOCI financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income, except for interest and dividend income, impairment losses
and foreign exchange differences on monetary assets, which are recognized in statement
of profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL,
that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss.
All derivative financial instruments are accounted for at FVTPL.

7 N\ \,L'\Ef‘] f[.-"/ A
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Embedded Derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the contracts are not measured at 'V i PL

Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

Trade Receivables

The Company applies approach as specified in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of receivables.

Other Financial Assets

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the counterparty.

Significant Judgements, Assumptions, and Estimations in applying Accounting
Policies

Classification of Leases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of
the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment
of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at
end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such
option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of present value
of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature
of the leased asset.

Close-down and Restoration Obligations

Close-down and restoration costs are normal consequence of mining or production, and
majority of close-down and restoration expenditure are incurred in the years following
the closure of mine, although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain. the Company
estimate their costs using current restoration techniques.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
"I’h?'3 extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of
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3.22.6

32270

3.22.8

3.22.9

assets can be utilized. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the
impact of any legal or economic limits.

inventories

The Company estimates the cost of inventories taking into account the most reliable
evidence. such as cost of materials and overheads considered attributable to the
production of such inventories including actual cost of production. etc. Management also
estimates the net realisable values of inventories. taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may
be affected by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future
selling prices.

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which
include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future
developments in discount rates, medical cost trends, anticipation of future salary
increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to
measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may
have a material impact on the resulting calculations.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This
involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with the market participants to
price the instrument. The Company’s assumptions are based on observable data as far as
possible, otherwise on the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary
from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the
reporting date.

Provisions and Contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37, “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent
events is applied best judgement by management regarding the probability of exposure
to potential loss.

Mine Closure and Restoration Obligations

Environmental liabilities and Asset Retirement Obligation (ARQO): Estimation of
environmental liabilities and ARO require interpretation of scientific and legal data. in
addition to assumptions about probability and future costs.

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets (tangible and intangible)

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at
each reporting date. based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to actual normal wear and tear that may change the utility of plant and
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(Al amounnts in T Crores, unless otherwise stated)
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Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 ENEEREEENES
As at 31st As at 3lst
March, 2024 March. 2023
6: TRADE RECEIVABLES - NON CURRENT
Receivables - credit impaired 5.85 5.68
5.85 3.68
Allowance for bad and doubtful receivables 5.83 5.68
7: LOANS NON-CURRENT
Loan to others 0.07 0.07
0.07 0.07
8: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT
Security deposits 0.71 0.71
Claims recoverable 0.25 0.25
0.96 0.96
Less: Allowance for doubtful non-current assets 0.24 0.24
0.72 0.72
21 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Related to property, plant and equipment (2.26) (2.12
Fair value adjustment of investment through OCI - (2.26) - (2.12)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Retirement Benefits 0.64 0.49
Others - Provisions for Bad Debis 1.47 1.43
Accumulated business losses and unabsorbed depreciation - 2.11 - 1.92
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (0.15) (0.20)

Deferred taxes arising from temporary differences and unused tax losses for the year ended 31st March, 2024, are summarised as follows:

As at Recognised in | Recognised in As at
31st March, profit or loss Other 31st March,
2023 comprehensive 2024
income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Related to property, plant and equipment (2.12) (0.14) - (2.26)
Fair value adjustment of investment through OCI - - - B
(2.12) (0.14) - (2.26)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Amount deductible on payment basis 0.49 0.15 - 0.64
Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income 1.43 0.04 - 1.47
1.92 0.19 - 2.11
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (0.20) (0.33) - (0.15)
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
9: CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Advance income tax (net of provision) 0.08 0.08
0.08 0.08
10: OTHER ASSETS - NON CURRENT
Adumcéitiaéntractors & suppliers 3.18 221
/ &é’pﬂal Advanfa 4,37 -
S R 7.55 2.21
;L@éss AIHWance;for doubtful other assets 1.31 0.22
6.24 1.99
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Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 EEDEREENEED
As at 3lst As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
11: INVENTORIES
Stores & spares
Production 8.88 8.68
Fuel Stores 0.64 1.90
9.52 10.58
Less: Allowance for non moving/obsolete items 5.13 4.39 4.53 6.05
Raw material
Raw materials 51.12 29.95
Add: In-transit 5.88 -
57.00 29.95
Less: Allowance for unusable materials - 57.00 - 29.935
Finished / Semi-finished products
Finished Goods 13.22 10.32
Work in Progress 1.26 231
Others - By-products (sub-grade fines) - 14.48 - 12.63
75.87 48.63
12: TRADE RECEIVABLES - CURRENT
Considered good - Secured 46.65 2749
Allowance for bad and doubtful receivables = z
46.65 27.49
13 (i): CASH AND CASH EQUEVALENTS
Current accounts 0.58 16.04
Term Deposits with original maturity upto 3 months 55.07 34.61
Term Deposits as per court orders with original maturity upto 3 months - 35.65 - 50.65
55.65 50.65
13 (ii): OTHER BANK BALANCES
Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility balalnce 0.03 E
Fixed deposits with maturity for more than 3 months but less
than 12 months 75.67 102.04
75.70 102.04
14: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - CURRENT
Claims recoverable 0.35 0.46
Receivables from employees 0.06 0.05
0.41 0.51
15: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Advances to contractors & suppliers 1.27 2.03
1.27 2.03
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Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 ESNEEREGREN
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
16: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised capital
Equity shares of % 10 each
(1.00.000 equity shares of 210 each) 0.10 0.10
Issued and subscribed capital & fully paid-up
(1.00.000 equity shares of 210 each fully paid up) 0.10 0.10
(i) Reconciliation of equity shares at the end of the year
Pariiculats As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
Equity shares with voting rights
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.00,000 0.10 1.00,000 0.10
Shares converted to shares with voting rights during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - L -
Balance at the end of the year# 1,00,000 0.10 1,00,000 0.10
Equity shares without voting rights
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - -
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares converted to shares with voting rights during the year - - = E
Balance at the end of the year# - - - -
Total equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,000 0.10 1,00,000 0.10
(ii) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the company
As on 31st March, 2023
Namie of Sharehioldes % of Holding No. of Shares | % of Holding
held
Steel Authority of India Limited 99.988 99988 99.988
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
17: OTHER EQUITY
Reserves & Surplus
Capital Reserve
Opening balance 43.70 43.70
Additions during the year = =
Less: Utilisation during the year 43.70 - 43.70
General Reserve
Opening balance 17.58 15.81
Additions during the year 2.02 1.77
Less: Utilisation during the vear - 19.60 - 17.58
Retained Earnings
Opening balance 107.44 104.47
Add: Net profit / loss (-) for the year 20.17 17.75
Add: Other comprehensive income/loss (-) (0.02) (0.49)
Add: Transfer from Bond Redemption Reserve - -
Less: Final dividend paid 0.08 6.02
Less: Interim dividend paid 6.00 6.50
Less: Transf r,to General Reserve 2.02 119.49 1.77 107.44
Total othet equity, 182.79 168.72
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, salem

(All amounts in T Crores, unless otherwise stated)

RN

]
MNote forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 OREREDEDRIEE
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
18: TRADE PAYABLES - NON CURRENT
Amount payable to contractors/suppliers/others 6.07 3.31
6.07 3.31
19: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - NON CURRENT
Other payables 39.47 39.34
39.47 39.34
20: PROVISIONS - NON CURRENT
Provision for gratuity 1.83 1.50
Provision for accrued leave liability 0.74 0.44
Provision for mines closure 0.03 0.03
Other provisions 11.05 11.05
13.65 13.02
NON CURRENT PROVISIONS
Gratuity
Opening Balance 1.50 0.36
Add : Provision during the year 0.33 0.94
Less: Amount paid / utilised during the year -
Less: Provision written back during the year - 1.83 - 1.50
Accrued Leave Liability
Opening Balance 0.44 0.23
Add : Provision during the year 0.30 0.21
Less: Amount paid / utilised during the year - .
Less: Provision written back during the year - 0.74 - 0.44
Mines closure
Opening Balance 0.03 0.03
Add : Provision during the year -
Less: Amount utilised during the year - L
Less: Provision written back during the year - 0.03 - 0.03
Others
Opening Balance 11.05 11.05
Add : Provision during the year - -
Less: Amount utilised during the year - -
Less: Provision written back during the vear - 11.05 - 11.05
""""" 13.65 13.02




SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

(All amounts in ¥ Crores, unless otherwise stated)

gmme,

|
Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 DEENEEERERE
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
22: BORROWINGS - CURRENT
Secured
From banks 7.63 -
7.65 -
23: TRADE PAYABLES - CURRENT
Amount payable to contractors/suppliers/others - 2.83
- 2.83
24: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT
Security deposits 0.47 0.64
Unspent corpoarte social responsibility 0.33 -
Other payables 25.59 18.95
26.39 19.59
25: OTHER LIABILITIES - CURRENT
Other Payables 0.78 0.84
0.78 0.84
26: PROVISIONS - CURRENT
Provision for wage revision 2.26 0.98
Other provisions 1.48 1.42
3.74 2.40
CURRENT PROVISIONS
Wage Revision
Opening Balance 0.98 -
Add : Provision during the year 1.28 0.98
Less: Amount utilised during the year - s
Less: Provision written back during the year - 2.26 . 0.98
Others
Opening Balance 1.42 1.20
Add : Provision during the year 0.06 0.22
Less: Amount utilised during the year - -
Less: Provision written back during the year - 1.48 - 1.42
3.74 2.40
27: CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Opening Balance 13 0.66
Add: Provision during the year 7.25 7.10
Less: Amount paid during the year 10.02 4,63
Less: Proyisien written back during the year - 0.36 - 3.13
/7 NOAPA
1A NG 0.36 313
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, salem ’iﬂb

(4l amounts in T Crores, unless otherwise stated) @ Aq%‘

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 EENEEENREED
Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

28: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of products

Domestic 163.13 166.96
Sub Total (a) 163.13 166.96
Other Operating Revenues
Social amenities-recoveries 0.07 0.09
Sale of empties etc. 0.91 -
Sundries 0.04 0.08
Sub Total (b) 1.02 0.17
Total (ath) 164.15 167.13
29. OTHER INCOME
Interest income
Bank deposits 10.07 7.80
Others - 0.18
Sub Total  (a) 10.07 7.98
Other Non-operating income
Allownaces no longer required written back 0.22 1.03
Others 0.58 1.00
Sub Total (b) 0.80 2.03
Total (athb) 10.87 10.01
30 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw Material - QMAG / DBM / SEA WATER / FM 90.42 88.81
Total 90.42 88.81
31: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND BY-
PRODUCTS
Opening stock
Finished Goods 10.32 14.30
Work in Progress 2.31 3.76
Iron ore fines (sub-grade) - 12.63 - 18.06
Less : Closing stock
Finished Goods 13.22 10.3
Work in Progress 1.26 231
Iron ore fines (sub-grade) - 14.48 - 12.63
Accretion(-)/Depletion to stock (1.83) 5.43




SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, salem

(All amounts in T Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

o=y
#5%a%

Year ended
31st March, 2024

Year ended
J1st March, 2023

32: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries & wages 14.89 1538
Leave encashment 0.54 0.45
Company's contribution to provident & other funds 0.65 0.70
Travel concession - 0.07
Welfare expenses 1.41 1.04
Gratuity 0.31 0.27
17.80 17.91
33: FINANCE COSTS
Interest Cost
Bank borrowings 0.05 =
0.05 -
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
34: OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of stores & spares
Consumption 7.06 6.20
Repairs & maintenance
Buildings 0.19 0.18
Plant & Machinery 0.15 0.14
Others 0.10 0.44 0.09 0.41
Handling expenses
Raw material 1.44 1.19
Remuneration to Auditors
Audit fees 0.01 0.01
Tax audit fees - -
For other services 0.01 0.01
Out of packet expenses 0.02 - 0.02
Allowances
Doubtful debts, loans and advances 0.17 1.31
Stores. spares and sundries 0.60 0.77 1.76 3.07
Power and Fuel 9.60 9.56
Freight outward 5.09 6.64
Royalty and cess 0.14 0.15
Insurance 0.15 0.16
Law charges 0.06 0.03
Postage. telegram & telephone 0.06 0.06
Printing & stationery 0.04 0.02
Rates & Taxes 1.77 0.73
Rent - 0.01
Security expenses 2.40 2.23
Travelling expenses 0.21 0.22
Training expenses 0.21 0.18
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility 0.52 0.46
Cost audit fee and reimbursement expense - 0.01
Hand]__i_n_gﬁ)}pep_ses - finished goods 2.05 1.27
Viisealiantofid) -, 8.15 7.00
X7 XX 40.18 39.62




SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31*"March 2024

35. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (net of advances)

are:

As at 31* March, 2024 | As at 31° March, 2023
Particulars (% Crore) (¥ Crore)
Capital Commitments 13.10 NIL _
Other Commitments 36.22 51.25 |

36. The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to
Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31st March, 2024 are as under:

(Terore)

No.

Description

As at 31 As at 31%
March, 2024 | March, 2023

The principal amount remaining unpaid to
suppliers as at the end of the Year.

NIL NIL

ii.

The amount of interest accrued during the Year
and remaining unpaid at the end of the Year..

jii.

The amount of further interest remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding Year, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23.

Iv.

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
supplier as at the end of the Year.

For the Year ended

31st March, 31%'March,

2024 2023

V.

The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16,
along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the Year.

vi.

The amount of interest due and payable for the
period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
Year) but without adding the interest specified
under this Act.

QORIAN
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem
Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31*"March 2024

37. As per the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) guideline, the Company is required to
contribute up to 30% of Salary (Basic Pay + Dearness Allowance) in respect of executive
employees as superannuation benefits, which may include Contributory Provident Fund.
Gratuity, Pension and Post-Superannuation Benefits. Accordingly the Company has made
provision for pension benefit for executive employees @ 9% of Salary w.e.f. st January. 2012
There is no mention about Pension Scheme in the Wage Agreement entered into with the Union
for non-executive, hence no provision for non-executives.

The cumulative provision/liability towards pension benefit for executive employees, amounting
to T1.61crore(Z0.15crore during the year) has been charged to ‘Employee Benefits Expense’.

38. SRCL Board had cleared the proposal for wage revision of its Executives in its 15th Board
Meeting held on 11.01.2017 as per 2007 DPE Scale and the same was effective for 5 years with
effect from 01.01.2017. SAIL Corporate Office has accorded its clearance on 21.09.2017 for
implementation of the same. Ministry of Steel had accorded approval for wage revision of
Executives on 16.11.2018 as per DPE 2007 pay scale which was communicated by SAIL
Corporate Office vide letter Ref.No.PER/EC/1220,Dated28.11.2018. Therefore, the next wage
revision of SRCL Executives fall due on 01.01.2022.

The wage revision proposal with effect from 01.01.2022 was put up to the SRCL Board. The
Board in its 49th Board Meeting held on 28.09.2022 has approved the proposal for wage
revision for Executives w.e.f. 01.01.2022 for a period of 5 years. Accordingly the provision
towards wage revision of Executives with effect from 01.01.2022. The financial impact of
wage revision provision during the financial year is 0.78 Crores (cumulative provision from
01.01.2022 1s ¥1.76 Crores)

Non-Executives Wage Revision, the same is due from 16.12.2023. The provision of 20.50
Crores towards wage revision of Non Executives has been provided.

39. The Company internally reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets on each balance sheet
date for the purpose of ascertaining impairment, if any, by considering assets of the entire plant
as Cash Generating Unit (CGU). If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is
estimated as higher of the net selling price and the value in use. Value in use is based on present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its
disposal at the end of its useful life.An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. On such review as on 31% March, 2024, no
impairment loss is required to be provided.

40. As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend, in every
financial vear, at least 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the three
Jmﬂnedlatel} preceding financial years in accordance with its Corporate Social Responsibility

(‘E{’f (CS ]@)E;o icy, which works out to 30.46 crore for the year 2023-24. SRCL has committed a
\e£\ € iﬂ(\:‘S’R Expendxture 0f0.52 crores.




SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31%March 2024

41.

The status of CSR expenditure under various heads is as under:-

ICrore
Particulars Spent Unspent
Education 0.11 0.00
| Women Empowerment 0.00 0.05
Sanitation 0.00 0.27
Others 0.09 0.00
Total 0.20 0.32

In respect of unspent CSR amount, SRCL has placed the Work Order and the liability has been

created in the books of accounts during the year 2023-24.

As per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the unspent amount pertaining
to ongoing projects shall be transferred to “Unspent CSR Account”. Accordingly the same has

been complied to for 0.32 Crores by opening an account with State Bank of India.

For the year 2022-23 as per the Companies Act 2013 CSR expenditure was to be for Rs.0.43
Crores against which the budget of Rs.0.46 Crores was allotted. The Company has spent Rs.0.05
Crores within the FY.2022-23. The Balance unspent amount of Rs.0.41 Crores has been
transferred to Unspent CSR Account as per section 135(6) Companies Act, 2013 and completed

within 31.07.2023 and a total amount spent.

The “CSR Unspent” bank account for the year 2021-22 and 2022-23 is under process for closure.

Information on leases as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 17 on Leases:
Mining land

The, Company has leasehold lands for mining by virtue of its rights under the lease
/2 agr’eem‘ent after considering the right/ economic compulsion for renewal.

W% \' ‘:,_;
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AIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31"March 2024

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES

42. General Description of Defined Benefit Schemes:

Gratuity

Leave Encashment

Provident Fund

Payable to Executives on separation @15 days pay (Basic plus
DA) last drawn for each completed year of service to eligible
employees who render continuous service of 5 years or more.
For Non-executives, the gratuity is payable on separation @15
days pay (Basic plus DA) last drawn for each completed year
of service to eligible employees who render continuous service
of 5 years or more. Gratuity shall be calculated @ one month
pay (Basic plus DA) last drawn for each completed year of
service beyond 30 years for Non-executives. The maximum
amount of gratuity of ¥20 lakhs for both executives & non-

executives has been considered for actuarial valuation.

Payable on superannuation to eligible Executive employees
who have accumulated earned leave, subject to maximum limit
of 300 days. For Non-Executive employees to a maximum limit
of 200 days of earned leave. Encashment of accumulated
earned leave is also allowed up to 30 days or 50% of leave at

credit whichever is less once in a financial year.

12% of Basic Pay Plus Dearness Allowance, contributed to
Employees Provident Fund Organization, Salem by the

company.



SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31"'March 2024

43. Disclosures required under Ind AS 19 on ‘Employee Benefits’, in respect of defined
benefit obligations are :

(a) Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations :

(Xcrore)
SL - - = Leave
No. Particulars Gratuity Encachmieiit
1) Present Value of projected benefit
obligations, as at the beginning of the 770 1.63
year.
i) Service Cost 0.20 0.06
iii) | Interest Cost 0.57 0.12
iv) | Actuarial Gains(-) / Losses(+) -0.07 0.43
V) Past Service Cost - -
vi) | Benefits Paid 1.15 0.48
vii) | Present Value of projected benefit
obligations as at the end of the year. 7.25 1.76
(1Hi+iiiHv-v-vi)

(b) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets and Obligations

The Company has funded the gratuity liability through a separate Gratuity Fund. The fair value
of the plan assets is mainly based on the information given by the insurance companies

through whom the investments have been made by the Fund.

The reconciliation of fair value of assets of the Gratuity Fund and defined benefit gratuity
obligations is as under:

( crore)
SLNo Particulars 2023-24 | 2022-23

i) Fair Value of plan assets as at the beginning of the
6.21 7.78

year

i) Expected return on plan assets 0.46 0.55
i1) Actual Company’s contribution 4
v) Interest Income/Actuarial Gain/Loss -0.09 -0.09
V) Benefits payments 1.15 2.03
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 5.44 5921
Present value of defined benefit obligation 7.25 7.70
Net liability recognised in the Balance sheet (vii)-(vi) -1.82 -1.49




SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31°"March 2024

The reconciliation of fair value of assets of the Leave Encashment Fund and defined
benefit Leave Encashment obligations is as under:

SLNo | Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
i) Fair Value of plan assets as at the beginning of the 1.19 1.23
year
ii) Expected return on plan assets 0.09 0.09
ii1) Actual Company’s contribution - =
iv) Interest Income/Actuarial Gain/Loss -0.02 -0.01
V) Benefits payments 0.24 012
vi) Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 1.01 1.19
vii) Present value of defined benefit obligation 1.76 1.63
viii) | Net liability recognised in the Balance sheet (vii)-(vi) -0.75 -0.44
(¢) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year :
(X Crore)
sl Leave
N(; Particulars Gratuity Encashment
i) | Service Cost 0.20 0.06
ii) | Interest Cost 0.11 0.03
iii) | Actuarial Gains
()/T sies -0.07 0.44
iv) | Past Service Cost - -
v) | Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
vi) | Total (iHi+ili+tiv-v) 0.24 0.53
vii) | Employees’ Benefits Expenses :
a) Charged to Profit & Loss Account 0.31 0.54
b) Chal'gefi to Expenditure During 0.00 0.00
Construction
¢) Charged to OCI 0.02 0.00
d) Charged to Profit & Loss Account- 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses
viii) A(‘:tual Re"furn on Plan Assets excluding 0.37 0.07
interest income

(d) Effect of 0.5 percentage point change in the Discount rate on Employees’ Benefit
schemes

(% crore)

0.5 percentage

0.5 percentage point

Particulars point decrease in | increase in discount
discount rate rate
0.12 0.12
0.03 0.10




SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31**March 2024

(e) Effect of 0.5 percentage point change in the salary escalation rate on Employees’

Benefit schemes

(% crore)

| SIL

0.5percentage point

0.5 percentage point

No Particulars decrease in discount increase in discount
rate rate
i) [ Gratuity 0.09 , 0.09
ii) | Leave 0.10 | 0.03

(f) Investments of Gratuity Trust / Leave Encashment Fund

Particulars % of Investment
As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23
Gratuity Trust 74.98 80.70
Leave Encashment Trust 57.75 72.93
(g) Actuarial assumptions
SL. No. | Description As at 31° March, 24 As at 31st March, 23
1) Discount Rate 7.21% 7.35%
(per annum)
ii) Mortality rate 100% of IALM (2012-2014) | 100% of IALM (2012-2014)
iii) Retirement Age
- Executives 60 Year 58 Year
- Non Executives 60 Year 60 Year
v) Salary Escalation Executives: 6.25% p.a. Executives: 6.25% p.a.
Non-Executives:6.25% p.a. Non-Executives:6.25% p.a.

(h) Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligations

(X Crore)
As at 31st March 2024
Period ; Leave
i Encashment

Upto 1 year 0.78 0.20
Between 1 to 2 years 1.45 0.32
Between 2 to 3 years 1351 0.38
Between 3 to 4 years 0.37 0.06
Between 4 to 5 vears 0.83 0.22
Between 5 to 6 years 1.16 0.26
6 Years onwards 1.15 0.32
Projected Benefit Obligation 7.25 1.76
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31""March 2024

44. Disclosure of Material Transactions with Related Parties :-

Sales to SAIL Units

(Xin Crores)

Party Name Ton Gross Sales GST Net Sales
ALLOY STEEL PLANT 602.938 8.89 1.36 7.53
BHILAI STEEL PLANT 4493.954 70.50 10.75 59.75
BOKARO STEEL PLANT 3259.095 4891 7.46 41.45
DURGAPUR STEEL PLANT 2557.878 27.84 4.25 23.59
[ISCO STEEL PLANT 895.745 14.05 2.14 11.91
ROURKELA STEEL PLANT 1393.811 20.90 3.19 17.71
SAIL REFRACTORY UNIT (BHILAI) 230.000 0.37 0.02 0.35
SAIL REFRACTORY UNIT (RANCHI) 60.000 0.05 - 0.05
SALEM STEEL PLANT 70.417 0.92 0.14 0.78
Sales to SAIL Units 13563.839 192.43 29.31 163.12
Raw Material Transfer to SAIL Units : (Xin Crores)
Party Name Ton Gross GST Net
SAIL REFRACTORY UNIT (RANCHI) 60.000 0.45 0.02 0.43
Total 60.000 0.45 0.02 0.43
Procurement from SAIL Units : (%in Crores)
Party Name Ton Gross GST Net
SAIL REFRACTORY UNIT (BOKARO) 1179.620 3.63 0.55 3.08
SALEM STEEL PLANT 114.64 0.21 0.03 0.18
Total 1294.260 3.840 0.580 3.26

45, Disclosures of provisions required by Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)37 ‘Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Brief Description of Provisions :

Mines afforestation -
costs
Mines closure costs -

hPAL, - Overburden -

o —

&/ .\\%ﬁcklog removal costs

J‘;r 3 ‘j‘ N".

Payable on renewal (including deemed renewal)/forest
clearance of mining leases to Government authorities,
towards afforestation cost at mines for use of forest
land for mining purposes.

Estimated liability towards closure of mines, to be
incurred at the time of cessation of mining activities.
To be incurred towards removal of overburden backlog

at mines over the future years.




SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31""March 2024

(Zcrore)
Movement of provisions Mines Mines Over Total
affore- | closure burden
station cosfts removal
costs costs
Balance as at 1** April, 2023 0.03 6.78 6.81
Additions during the Year . - -
Amounts utilised during the Year - - -
Unused amount reversed during the Year - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 0.03 6.78 6.81
46. Contingent Liabilities:-
Legal (Xcrore)
TR As at 31st March As at 31st March
2024 2023
Disputed Statutory Issues 4.75 0.11
Disputed Other matters — Contract 0.94 0.94
Bank Guarantee Furnished 11.30 12.05
Total 16.99 13.10

State Govt. & Mines

Govt. of Tamil Nadu has raised Demand Notice towards surface rent compensation for
Mining lease hold lands for the period 1943 to 2010 for an amount of Rs.458 Crores during
Aug 2010 on SRCL based on GO No.460 dt 14.06.98 which was issued under Tamil Nadu
Panchayat Act 1994. Subsequently the Government of Tamil Nadu has revised the demand to
Rs.1153 Crores by levying interest on 08.02.2017. Further the same has been revised to
Rs.1830.39 Crores vide letter dated 05.12.2023.

SRCL has filed a writ petition with Madras High Court stating that surface rent compensation
was not payable for Government Poromboke lands and the demand notice is not issued under
the provisions of Mineral Concession Rules 1960 and hence not sustainable and obtained

interim stay on the above during April 2017.

. dhe Hon’ble Madras High Court disposed off the Writ Petition on 30.03.2023 by passing the
RN i y ‘

.;fi"«f}‘" ordé}“":',that SRCL is given the liberty to approach the Revisional Authority (Central Govt.)

LEF o el 2N '

o e iﬁﬁ%[er’thé Mines and Minerals (Development & Regulation) Act, 1957 to resolve the dispute.
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31""March 2024

Accordingly appeal was filed before the Revisional Authority (Central Govt.), New Delhi, on
24" May, 2023 and the proceedings are in process. Hearings were conducted on 15.09.2023
and 21.12.2023. Next hearing was posted on 4™ April, 2024 and the revisionary authority has
issued the final order no.18/2024, dated 25.04.2024 by setting aside the Government’s Order

and remanding back the matter to the State Government.

47. The Mining operations in SRCL have been stopped from January 2017 for want of
Environment Clearance from Ministry of Environment and Forest and Climate Change
(MoEF). SRCL has submitted application for Environment Clearance to MoEF during
January 2017.

MoEF has directed SRCL to obtain No Objection Certificate from Mines & Geology
Department in respect of settlement of compensation amount payable against operation of
mining activities, in the absence of Environment Clearance, in terms of provision under
section 21(5) of the MMDR Act 1957 as directed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in their

judgment dated 2™ August, 2017 for similar cases.

The State Government has issued three nos. of Memo vide no.ROC No.45/2018/M-5/Mines-
A, ROC No.45/2018/M-6/Mines-A and ROC No0.45/2018/M-7/Mines-A all dated 04.03.2020
directing SRCL to deposit Rs.49,07,14.243/- towards compensation with respect to
Environment Clearance for the period from 01.04.2000 to 31.03.2017. Liability to the tune of
Rs.15.66 Crores for the partial period from 15.01.2016 to 10.01.2017 was made in the SRCL
Accounts during the year 2018-19 as per demand received from the State Government. The
balance amount of liability amounting to Rs.33.41 Crores has been made in the accounts

during the year 2019-20 and included under non-current liability.

Based on the Minutes of Meeting held on 02.12.2021 with Additional Chief Secretary,
Industries, Govt. of Tamil Nadu, and other Officials and subsequent approval by the SRCL
Board vide Circular Resolution No.CIR-47/01 dtd.31.12.2021, the amount of Rs.36.77 crore
have been paid to Govt. of Tamil Nadu during 2021-22 towards 100% compensation with
respect to Environment Clearance in respect of Red Hill Mines. As against Rs.49.07 Crores
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On continuous persuasion with the Govt. of Tamil Nadu, SRCL received Letter of Intent
(Lol) in the name of SAIL Refractory Company Ltd. on 02.11.2022 in respect of G.O. No.853
i.e. Red Hills Magnesite and Dunite Mines. As per ToR granted by MoEF& CC in respect of
Red Hill Mines (G.O. No.853), the documents/maps were obtained from the Principal Chief
Conservator of Forest and Wild Life Warden on 06.02.2023 after duly authenticated and
certified by him. Copies of Draft EIA/EMP report has been submitted at Tamil Nadu
Pollution Control Board (TNPCB), Salem on 24.03.2023 for conducting Public Hearing. The
Public Hearing was held on 04.07.2023 for Red Hill Magnetite and Dunite Mines. TNPCB
has finalise the EIA/EMP report. Credible action case has been filed by Tamil Nadu Pollution
Control Board, Salem vide CC No: 196/2024, dated: 04/03/2024. SRCL has filed final
application for grant of EC at Parivesh Portal of MoEF & CC, on 09.03.2024. Expert
Appraisal Committee has included SRCL’s proposal for grant of EC in the agenda issued

towards meetings scheduled in May 2024.

48. Financial Risk Management

i) Financial instruments by category

(Tcrore)
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Pexsienlars FVIPL [Fvoct |Amortised |\ ooy | pyvocy |Amortised
cost cost
Financial assets
Investments - - - - - -
Equity instruments - - - - - -
Trade receivables - - 46.65 E - 27.49
Cash and cash equivalents - - 55.65 - - 50.65
Other Bank Balances - - 75.70 - - 102.04
Loans - - 0.07 - - 0.07
Derivative financial assets - - - - - -
Other receivables - - 1.13 - - 1.23
Total B - 179.20 - B 181.48
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 7.67 . - 0.02
Trade payable - - 6.07 - - 6.14
Derivative Liability - - - - - -
Other payables - - 65.87 E - 58.95
Agtalisy - - 961 | = : 65.11
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ii)

A)

Risk Management
The Company is exposed to various risks in relation to financial asset and liabilities. The main

types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management is
coordinated in close cooperation with the board of directors and focuses on actively securing the
Company’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimising the exposure to volatile financial
markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting returns. The Company
does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it write
options. The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described

below.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. The
Company is less exposed to credit risk for various financial instruments. for example amount
receivablesfrom customers other than SAIL Plants, placing term deposits, etc. The Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of following types financial

assets.

-Cash and cash equivalents
-Trade receivables

-Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company continuously monitors the customers and other counterparties, identified either
individually or by the Company, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls.

The Company's policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties.

a) Credit risk management

Cash and cash equivalent
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents is negligible as deposits are made in highly

rated Public Sector banks only.

Denvatwe financial instruments
S Y J-J.:

/ Sﬁ@ Edeé‘s nol have any Derivative financial instruments.
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Trade receivables

Credit risk related to trade receivables are very less as the company sells its products to

SAIL Plants only except few items sells to RWF, under Ministry of Steel. There is no credit

sale to private parties.

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost include advances to employees and others.

Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability

of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system is in place to

ensure the amounts are within defined limits.

b) Expected credit losses

Company provides expected credit losses based on the following

Trade receivables

The Company recognizes lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables using a simplified

approach and uses historical information to arrive at loss percentage relevant to each category of

trade receivables:

(Rcrore)
Ageing 0-3 3-12 12-24 | 24-36 | more than | oo
(As at 31st March, 2024) | months | months | months | months | 36 months
Gross carrying amount 39.77 6.88 0.18 0.21 5.46 | 52.50
Expected loss rate 100% 100% 100%
Expected credit loss provision 0.18 0.21 546 | 5.85
Carrying amount of trade
receivables (Net of 39.77 6.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 46.65
impairment)
(FTcrore)
Ageing 0-3 3-12 12-24 24-36 | more than | ..
(As at 31st March, 2023) | months | months | months | months | 36 months
Gross carrying amount 23.47 4.02 0.22 0.00 546 | 33.17
Expected loss rate 100% 100% 100%
Expected credit loss provision 0.22 0.00 546 | 5.68
Carrying amount of trade
/{oPeceivables (Net of 2347  4.02 0.00 |  0.00 0.00 | 27.49
[ impairment)
N 2]
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B)

Reconciliation of Expected credit loss provision (Tcrore)
Bariiculars Provision for
Trade Receivables |
As at 31st March, 2023 5.68
Changes in provision 0.17
As at 31st March, 2024 5.85

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

Company provides for expected credit losses on "loans advances and other than trade
receivables" by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses.
Since this category includes loans and receivables of varied nature and purpose. there is no trend
that the company can draw to apply consistently to entire population For such financial assets, the
Company's policy is to provides for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and
provides for lifetime expected credit losses upon significant increase in credit risk. The Company
does not have any expected loss based impairment recognized on such assets considering their
low credit risk nature, though incurred loss provisions are disclosed under each sub-category of
such financial assets.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash to meet obligations when
due.Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the
liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity
management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level
of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal
and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity companying
based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities and the amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

(Zcrore)
Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities asat | UeS™Ha0 | 15 voar | 2-3year | MOTOHAN | g
1 year 3 years
31st March, 2024
Non-derivatives
Security Deposit 0.47 217 0.23 1.43 4.30
_Trade payable - - 2.66 341 6.07
| Bébetawings from Bank 7.65 - : = 7.65
Othér payables 25.94 T2 2.31 2562 6159
Total | =/ 34.06 9.89 5.20 30.46 79.61
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(Tcrore)
Contractual maturities of | '
financial liabilities asat | LSS thAR | 4o v onr | 23 year | Morethan | 4.0
1year | 2 ¥ 3 years |
31st March, 2023 [
Non-derivatives j
Security Deposit 0.64 1.99 0.17 1.48 428
Trade payable 2.83 0.01 3.30 6.14
Other payables 18.97 7.79 231 25.62 54.69
Total 22.44 9.79 2.48 30.40 65.11

49. Segment Information :
The Company’s operations mainly relate to One Primary Segment and there are no Secondary

geographical segments.

50. Capital Management
The company’s capital management objectives are

-to ensure the company’s ability to continue as a going concern
-to provide an adequate return to shareholders
The company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash

equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

Management assesses the company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient
overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the
subordination levels of the company’s various classes of liabilities. The company manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital

structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders.
(Zcrore)
As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Total equity 182.89 168.82
'_'_Ijo_tal equity 182.89 168.82
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Dividends (Ferore)
As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars

March, 2024 | March, 2023

(i) Equity shares
- Final dividend paid (Net of Dividend Distribution Tax) 0.08 6.02
(i) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period 1.26 0.08
(iii) Interim dividend paid (Net of Dividend Distribution Tax) 6.00 6.50

51. A. CWIP AGEING SCHEDULE

Amount of CWIP as on 31/03/2024 from initial recognition in Balance Sheet

(X in crore)

= 0-12 12-24 24-36 | More than
S.No. Cwip months | months | months | 36 months Toml
1 Projects in progress 0 0 0 0 0
2 Projects Temporarily suspended 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0

Amount of CWIP as on 31/03/2023 from initial recognition in Balance Sheet

(X in crore)

0-12 12-24 24-36 | More than
B0 Cyie months | months | months | 36 months e
I Projects in progress 0 0 0 0 0
2 Projects Temporarily suspended 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 e 0 0 0

51. B. CWIP COMPLETION SCHEDULE

As on 31% March, 2024

(X in crore)

TR More
S.No. CWIP Dels 304 | 2436 | gize
months months | months
months
Projects in progress 0 0 0 0
Projects Temporarily suspended 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
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CWIP COMPLETION SCHEDULE

As on 31% March, 2023 (¥ in crore)
o _ More
$.No. CWIP DA2 " \r 1204 0 ah gy gp
months months | months

b months
= Projects in progress 0 0 0 0
Projects Temporarily suspended 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0

51. C. TRADE PAYABLE AGEING SCHEDULE

(X in crore)

Outstanding as on 31/03/2024 from due date of payment

R, Pattiguian Ull;l)l:jtlelsed EIL?; moc;ritfils rrllgjss n:ii;il?s 31?20:;0;}1;2 Toml

1 MSME - Disputed

2 | MSME - Undisputed
Subtotal - A

3 Others - Disputed

4 | Others - Undisputed 2.66 3.41 6.07
Subtotal - B 2.66 3.41 6.07
Grand Total (A+B) 2.66 3.41 6.07

(% in crore)

Outstanding as on 31/03/2023 from due date of payment

S No. Pt (oo Unbilled | Not | 0-12 12-24 | 24-36 | More than Total
Dues | due | months | months | months | 36 months
1 MSME - Disputed
2 | MSME - Undisputed
Subtotal - A
3 Others - Disputed
4 | Others - Undisputed 2.83 0.01 0.00 3.30 6.14
Subtotal - B 2.83 0.01 0.00 3.30 6.14
g x\‘*‘-i'* ”\ 2
| ("l"' e ;-,G;‘%n,_d Total (A+B) 283 | 0.01 | 0.00 3.30 6.14

."-:\_'{'\._ M P__‘,‘-"/_‘_..g-f:.
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51. D.TRADE RECEIVABLE AGEING SCHEDULE

(Tincrore)
Ageing of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2024
more
y 3 Not 0-3 3-6 6-12 12-24 24-36
Eeriuar Upiicd Due | months | months | months | months | months Hih. 30 oud
months
Gross carrying amount
(A) Current:
Undisputed - considered good 3077 6.14 0.74 46.65
Disputed - considered
Undisputed - credit impaired
Disputed - credit impaired
Total current 39.77 6.14 0.74 46.65
(B) Non - current:
Undisputed - considered good
Disputed - considered
Undisputed - credit impaired 0.18 | 0.21 5.46 5.85
Disputed - credit impaired
Total Non-current 0.18 | 0.21 546 | 5.85
Total gross 39.77| 6.14| 0.74| 0.18| 0.21 5.46 | 52.50
Expected loss (%) 100 100 100 100
Credit loss allowance 0.18 0.21 5.46 5.85
Net carrying value 39.77| 6.14| 0.74| 0.00| 0.00 0.00 | 46.65
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(Zin crore)
Ageing of Trade Receivables as at 31st March, 2023
|
more
Particulars vapites | Yo | B9 4| E2 | Bt 2690 rnae | o
Due | months | months | months | months | months
months ]
Gross carrying amount
(A) Current:
Undisputed - considered good 23.47 3.26 0.76 27.49
Disputed - considered
Undisputed - credit impaired
Disputed - credit impaired
Total current 23.47 3.26 0.76 27.49
(B) Non - current:
Undisputed - considered good
Disputed - considered
Undisputed - credit impaired 0.22| 0.00 546 | 5.68
Disputed - credit impaired
Total Non-current 0.22 0.00 5.46 5.68
Total gross 23.47 3.26 0.76 0.22 0.00 5.46 | 33.17
Expected loss (%) 100 100 100 100
Credit loss allowance 0.22 0.00 5.46 5.68
Net carrying value 2347 | 3.26 0.76 [ 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 | 27.49
Reconciliation of expected credit loss allowance
Particulars
(Xcrore)
As at 31st March, 2022 6.71
Changes in allowance-Less 1.03
As at 31st March, 2023 5.68
Changes in allowance-Add 0.17
As at 31st March, 2023 5.85
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31"March 2024

51. E. Balances of some of the Trade Receivables, Other Assets. Trade and Other Payables are

subject to confirmations/reconciliations and consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations

are carried out on on-going basis. Provisions, wherever considered necessary. have been

made. However, Management does not expect to have any material financial impact of such

pending confirmations/reconciliations.

51. F. In accordance with Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, GST amount of
%29.53Crore (Previous Year: 29.92 crore ) is not included in Revenue from Operations.

51. G. Sales include sale to Government Agencies recognized on provisional contract prices during the
year ended 31st March, 2024: Nil (Previous Year : NIL) and cumulatively up to 31st March.
2024 :NIL (upto Previous Year : NIL)

51. H. During the Year, Sales and Trade Receivables include 0.00 crore (previous Year 0.21 crore)
and %0.38 crore (previous Year %0.38 crore) for transactions with the Central Government i.e.
Rail Wheel Factory (RWF).

51. I. The research and development expenditure charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and allocated
to Fixed Assets/Capital work-in-progress (Net), during the Year, amount to NIL (During the
previous Year NIL) and NIL (During the previous Year NIL) respectively.

51. J. In compliance to General Financial Rule 238(5) & (6), the details of Grants received from
Ministry of Steel and it’s utilization for Research and Development Projects during last three
years are NIL.

51. K. The Shareholding of Promoters are as below

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change
:T:).. Promoters Name No. of Shares %Sf;::al yg:: '211082;]2;4
| Steel Authority of India Limited 100000 100% NIL
Total 100000

51. L. Right of Use Assets

Set out below are the carrying amounts of Right-of-Use Assets recognised and the movements

during the period: (in crore)
Particulars Vichicles

As at 1% April, 2023 0.04

Additions/Disposal 0.00

“Z-| Depreciation expense 0.01

© | As at 31* March, 2024 0.03
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51. M. Mining iand

The Company has not accounted for leasehold lands for mining as finance leases as the lease
agreement is neither transferred nor renewed in the name of the company.

51. N. Details of Loans and Advances granted that are:

(i) Repayable on demand, or
(ii) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(Tin crore

As on 31/03/2024 As on 31/03/2023
S.No. Type of Borrower Amt % of Amt % of
Outstanding Total | Outstanding | Total

1 Promoter 0 0 0 0

2 | Directors (specify names) 0 0 0 0

3 KMPs (specify names) 0 0 0 0

4 | Related parties 0 0 0 0

(Partywise) 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0

51. 0. RELATION WITH STRUCK OFF COMPANIES

(Rincrore)

Balance for the period ended

Name of Struck Nature of : -
S.No. OFf Cimipany S Relationship | 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
0 0 0

51. P. Reconciliation of Yearly Stock/Receivable statement filed for Fund Management for the
Year 2023-24

(ii) Work in progress

(iii) Store and Spares

(iv) Finished Goods

Gross Inventory

Less: Sundry creditors

Net Inventory

Loan from any Banker. Hence the filing
of Stock or Receivables Statements does

not arise.

(X in crore)
ey As per As per : Reasons for
NG, Eauiizhlass Statement Accounts R Difference
| Inventory
(1) Raw Material The Company has not availed Debt or

[ Arade Receivables
~ i \1‘_
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51. Q. The Title Deeds/Lease Agreements of the following Immovable Properties (included under the line
item 'Property Plant and Equipment' and 'Right of use asset') are not held in the name of the

company:

As at 31% March, 2024

[ St |
No.

| Item

Nature
Lin of
property
in
BS

Total Area
(Acres)

Gross

value
(Rs.in
crore)

Net Value
value

(Rs. in

crore)

Title Deed
Held in
Name of

Whether
title deed
holder is
a
promoter,
director
or their

Period held
indicate
range,
where
appropri
ate

Reason for
not
being held in
name of the
Company

1 Free
Hold
Land

1 Free
Hold
Land

1 Lease
Hold
Land

1 Lease
Hold
Land

1 Lease
Hold

Land

147.994
(Salem Tamil
Nadu)

21.81
(Kushal
Nagar,
Karnataka)

G.0.No.853-
Red Hills
Magnesite
and Dunite
Mines

1538.67 acres

G.0.No.51-
JaghirMagnesi
te Mines

250.44 acres

G.0.No.679-
A S.
JaghirMagnesi
te Mines

93.450 acres

5.11

The
total
Lease
Hold
Land
shown
in Asset
Register
as one
Rupee
value

5.1

The
total
Lease
Hold
Land
shown
in Asset
Register
as one
Rupee
value

Burn
Standard
Company
Ltd.
(BSCL)

BSCL

BSCL

BSCL

BSCL

No

No

No

No

No

Since
16.12.2011

Since
16.12.2011

Since
16.12.2011

Since
16.12.2011

Since
16.12.2011

1)SRCL has
applied for
waiver of
stamp duty to
the tune of
Rs.5.07 crore
to the
Inspector
General of
Registration,
Chennai
based on the
fact that the
said transfer
was between
two
Departments/
Administrative
Ministries of
Govt. of India
(Dept. of
Heavy
Industries and
Ministry of
Steel)

2)SRCL
requested the
Sub-Registrar,
Kushal Nagar,
Madikeri,
Karnataka
vide letter
SRCL / Mines
/2021-22/
041 dated
01.10.2021 for
change of
ownership in
the name of
SRCL

The Sub-
Registrar
Office, Kushal
Nagar replied
vide letter
dated
26.10.2021
stating that
SRCL have to
contact /
approach the
TahsildarTaluk
office,
Kushalnagara
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Since then we
are following
up with the
TahsildarTaluk
Office,
Kushalnagara
for transfer of
lands in the

| name of

SRCL.

3) Subsequent
to obtaining
the EC, the
Lease will be
granted in the
name of
SRCL.

4) The Gouvt.
of Tamil Nadu
has taken over
the 246.203
acres of Lease
Hold Land.
The balance
land available
is only 4.237
acres. The
Govt. of Tamil
Nadu has not
yet corrected
the Lease
Hold Land
area.

5) The Govt.
of Tamil Nadu
has taken over
the 37.012
acres of Lease
Hold Land.
The balance
land available
is only 56.438
acres. The
Govt. of Tamil
Nadu has not
yet corrected
the Lease
Hold Land
area
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As at 31° March, 2023

Sl e! Nature Total Area Gross Net Value | Title Deed | Whether | Period held Reason for
No. | Lin of (Acres) value value Held in title deed - not
Item| property (Rs. in (Rs. in Name of holder is indicate being held in
in crore) crore) a range, name of the
BS promoter, where Company
director | appropri
or their ate
1 1 Free 147.994 51 5.11 Burn No Since 1)SRCL has
Hold (Salem Tamil Standard 16.12.2011 | applied for
Land Nadu) Company waiver of
Ltd. stamp duty to
(BSCL) the tune of
21.81 Rs.5.07 crore
2 1 Free (Kushal to the
Hold Nagar, BSCL No Since Inspector
Land Karnataka) 16.12.2011 | General of
Registration,
G.0.No.853- The The BSCL No Since Chennai
3 1 Lease Red Hills total total 16.12.2011 | based on the
Hold Magnesite Lease Lease fact that the
Land and Dunite Hold Hold said transfer
Mines Land Land was between
shown shown two
1538.67 acres in Asset in Asset Departments/
Register Register Administrative
as one as one Ministries of
G.0.No.51- Rupee Rupee Govt. of India
4 1 Lease JaghirMagnesi value value BSCL Na Since (Dept. of
Hold te Mines 16.12.2011 | Heavy
Land Industries and
250.44 acres Ministry of
Steel)
G.0.No.679- 2)SRCL
A.S. requested the
JaghirMagnesi Sub-Registrar,
g 1 Lease te Mines BSCL No Since Kushal Nagar,
Hold 16.12.2011 | Madikeri,
Land 93.450 acres Karnataka
vide letter
SRCL / Mines
f2021-22/
041 dated
01.10.2021 for
change of
ownership in
the name of
SRCL
The Sub-
Registrar
Office, Kushal
Nagar replied
vide letter
dated
26.10.2021
stating that
SRCL have to
contact /
approach the

TahsildarTaluk
office,
Kushalnagara

Since then we
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are following |
up with the |
TahsildarTaluk |
Office, @
Kushalnagara
for transfer of |
lands in the |
name of

SRCL.

3) Subsequent
to obtaining

the EC, the
Lease will be
granted in the
name of

SRCL.

4) The Govt.

of Tamil Nadu
has taken over
the 246.203
acres of Lease
Hald Land.

The balance
land available

is only 4.237
acres. The
Govt. of Tamil
Nadu has not
yet corrected
the Lease

Hold Land

area.

5) The Govt.

of Tamil Nadu
has taken over
the 37.012
acres of Lease
Hold Land.

The balance
land available

is only 56.438
acres. The
Govt. of Tamil
Nadu has not
yet corrected
the Lease

Hold Land

area
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51. R. Ratios as per Amended Schedule I11

S.No. Particulars .9 GO (R 1 L Variance Reasons of |
March, | March, (%) variance for
2024 | 2023 any change by
' more than 25%
I Current ratio o ]
(Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 40+ L ! 8l -18%
2. Debt-Equity Ratio SRCL does not have any Debt
3. Debt Service coverage Ratio SRCL does not have any Debt
4, Return on Equity(%)
! (Net profit after tax/Average Net Worth) Mo Ll il
5 Inventory Turnover ratio (no. of days) Import of Raw
(Average Inventory /Revenue from Materials on
Operation) *365 139 days | ‘95 days 46% getting Global
€ Tender
Permission from
Govt.
6. Trade Receivable Turnover ratio (no. of days)
(Average Trade Receivables/ Revenue from 83 days 81 days 2%
Operation) *365
78 Trade Payable Turnover ratio (no. of days)
(Average Trade Payable/ Purchase of 19 days 21 days -10%
Goods)*363
8. Net Capital Turnover ratio ; . "
(Revenue from Operations/Working Capital) Gi5:l Dol e
9. | Net profit ratio(%)
(Net profit aﬂ'ef' tax/ Revenue from Operations) e i
10. | Return on Capital Employed (%)
(Earnings before Interest & Tax/ Capital 11% 11% NIL
Employed)
11. | Return on Investment (%)
(Income generated from invested funds/ There is no Investment of the
Average invested Funds) Company

In order to bring the uniformity, the Ratios have been calculated based on the numerator and

denominator considered by SAIL.

51. S. (i) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign en tities (‘the intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries’)

or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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52. /ﬁ[{ﬁ'grm‘.{p ng: Previous year figures have been rearranged/regrouped wherever necessary.
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53.E‘iu\fj‘h(e ’F‘réﬁr\ile)sf_appearmg in the Financial Statements have been given in rupees () rounded off to Crores
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SAIL REFRACTORY COMPANY LIMITED, Salem

(All amounts in T Crores, unless otherwise stated) %
Note forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 HEEENNERERE
Current Previous
year year
(X crore)
54. Expenditure incurred in foreign
currency on account of
Know-how Nil Nil
Interest Nil Nil
Raw Material and Components Spares 55.24 51.12
Total 55.24 51.12
55. Earnings in foreign exchange on account of
Export of goods(Calculated on FOB basis) Nil Nil
Nil Nil
56. Value of imports during the period
(Calculated on CIF basis)
Raw materials 54.65 50.65
Components and spares parts 0.59 0.47
Total 55.24 51.12
57. VALUE OF RAW MATERIALS , SPARE PARTS
COMPONENTS CONSUMED DURING THE YEAR
RAW MATERIALS
Imported value 51.58 53.89
Percentage 57.04 60.68
Indigenous value 38.84 34.92
Percentlage 4296 39.32
Total-value 90.42 88.81
Percentage 100.00 100.00
Less: Inter Account Adjustment 0.00 0.00
90.42 88.81
COMPONENTS AND SPARE PARTS
Imported-value 0.53 0.02
Percentage 7.51 0.32
Indigenous-value 6.33 6.18
Percentage 92.49 99.68
Total- mluerj, : 7.06 6.20
f St Lé: 3 100.00 100.00
‘g‘}ﬁter Acco\n‘thdJustmem 0.00 0.00
i \J__ 7.06 6.20
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